
August 3, 2015 
 

The East Lampeter Township Board of Supervisors met on Monday, August 3, 2015, at 
7:30 p.m. at the East Lampeter Township Office: 2250 Old Philadelphia Pike, Lancaster, PA 
17602. The meeting was called to order by Mr. John Blowers, Chairman and was followed by 
the Pledge of Allegiance. In addition to Mr. Blowers, supervisors present were: Mr. David 
Buckwalter, Mr. Corey Meyer and Mr. Ethan Demme. Mr. Glenn Eberly was absent.  Also 
present was Mr. Ralph Hutchison, Township Manager.    
 
The following persons signed in as being present in the audience: 
 
Lynn Commero, Lancaster Newspapers 
Michael Cowen, 114 East Lancaster Avenue, representing Commonwealth Engineers 
Keith Greiner, Lampeter, PA, state representative 
John Groff, Hostetter Lane, representing Troop 8 
Mark Groff, Hostetter Lane, representing Troop 8 
Brenton Ebersole, 3010 Compass Road, representing Keystone Steel Structures 
Tim Hoerner, 2642 Old Philadelphia Pike, representing Hand In Hand Fire Company 
 
Minutes of the July 13, 2015 Regular Meeting 
 
Chairman Blowers asked if there were any additions or corrections regarding the minutes of the 
July 13, 2015 regular meeting as prepared. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Meyer to approve the minutes as presented.  Mr. Demme seconded 
the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Bills: 
 
Chairman Blowers indicated that bills to be paid from various funds in the amount of $609,959.73 
were presented for payment. Mr. Blowers discussed some of the larger items included in that 
amount was a payment in the amount of $70,012.16 to CH&N Site Construction Inc. for services 
related to the sewer main collapse near Lincoln Highway East, a payment in the amount of 
$5,497.22 to Ferguson Waterworks for new pipe related to the sewer main collapse near Lincoln 
Highway East, a payment in the amount of $11,482.80 to Keystone Pump & Power LLC for 
bypass pumping equipment related to the sewer main collapse near Lincoln Highway East, a 
payment in the amount of $1,284.74 to L/B Water Service Inc. for miscellaneous parts related to 
the sewer main collapse repairs near Lincoln Highway East, a payment in the amount of 
$57,000.00 to Morgan Stanley for pension plan MMO deposits ($50,000 to police plan and 
$7,000 to non-uniform plan), a payment in the amount of $54,802 to New Holland Auto Group 
for the purchase of 2 Police Ford Vehicles as budgeted, a payment in the amount of $110,998.96 
to Telco Inc. for repairs and new installations including $60,849.71 for repairs at Rt. 30 and 
Oakview Road (an accident to be reimbursed by the responsible party’s insurance) and $46,086 
for the installation of the new Traffic Responsive System (to be reimbursed by the ARLE grant). 
 
Mr. Buckwalter asked about the total for the sewer event. Mr. Hutchison stated that the bills 
received are the bulk of the expenses but there may be some smaller bills yet to be received.  He 
stated that the Township is waiting for determination from insurance whether there is coverage.  
He stated that the Township has spoken with the Sewer Authority to cover it as a major 



emergency if there is no insurance coverage.  Mr. Blowers asked if there were any issues with 
DEP and if the Township handled it appropriately.  Mr. Hutchison stated that the Township 
handled it properly and the Township has received no notices of concern from DEP 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Demme and seconded by Mr. Buckwalter to approve the payment of 
the bills as listed in the amount of $609,959.73.  The motion was passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Old Business: 
 

a. Request for Release of Financial Security – Country Acres: 20 Leven Road 
 
Chairman Blowers asked if anyone was present for this agenda item.  No one was present. 
 
Mr. Hutchison stated that the Engineer is recommending a conditional full release subject to the 
completion of the crosswalk at the driveway and Leven Road and the revision of the as-built 
plans. 
Mr. Blowers asked if the outstanding balance of $7,425.00 remains until those conditions are 
addressed. Mr. Hutchison stated that is the recommendation.   
 
Mr. Buckwalter made a motion to approve a conditional full release of financial security for 
Country Acres: 20 Leven Road based upon the recommendation of the Engineer’s letter dated 
July 16, 2015.  Mr. Meyer seconded the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 

b. Request for Release of Financial Security – Stephen Riehl: 2550 Meadowland Drive 
 
Chairman Blowers asked if anyone was present for this agenda item. No one was present. 
 
Mr. Blowers stated that the Township Engineer is recommending the full release of financial 
security in the amount of $20,000.00 leaving a remaining balance of $0. 
 
Mr. Meyer made a motion to approve the full release of financial security for Stephen Riehl: 
2550 Meadowland Drive as recommended by the Township Engineer.  Mr. Demme seconded the 
motion and it was passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 

c. Request for Release of Financial Security – Lancaster Auto Detail: 1658 Lincoln 
Highway East 

 
Chairman Blowers asked if anyone was present for this agenda item. No one was present. 
 
Mr. Blowers stated that the Township Engineer is recommending a reduction in financial 
security in the amount of $9,250.60 leaving a remaining balance of $3,094.00.   
Mr. Hutchison stated that the as-built plan needs updated to show landscaping.   
 
Mr. Buckwalter made a motion to approve the reduction in financial security in the amount of 
$9,250.60 leaving a remaining balance of $3,094.00 as recommended by the Township Engineer.  
Mr. Meyer seconded the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
 
 



 
d. Request for Time Extension to Record Conditionally Approved Plan – Dr. Carano:  

1670 Lincoln Highway East 
 
Chairman Blowers asked if anyone was present for this agenda item.  No one was present. 
 
Mr. Hutchison explained that when Dr. Carano’s plan was conditionally approved he elected to 
complete the required improvements before recording the plan rather than posting financial 
security for the improvements.  Mr. Hutchison stated that Dr. Carano has been working to 
complete all the improvements and is close to being done except for some items, in particular the 
landscaping items, that need to be done in the fall so he is asking for a time extension to 
complete the improvements. 
 
Mr. Demme made a motion to approve the time extension to record the conditionally approved 
plan for Dr. Carano: 1670 Lincoln Highway East until November 14, 2015 to complete the 
improvements.  Mr. Buckwalter seconded the motion. Mr. Meyer stated that the letter is 
requesting until November 10, 2015.  Mr. Demme modified the motion to approve the time 
extension to record the conditionally approved plan for Dr. Carano: 1670 Lincoln Highway East 
until November 10, 2015 to complete the improvements.  Mr. Buckwalter seconded the motion 
and it was passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 

e. Request for Waiver of Stormwater Management Ordinance Process – Highview Church 
of God: 2470 Leaman Road 

 
Chairman Blowers asked if anyone was present for this agenda item.  No one was present. 
 
Chairman Blowers stated the Highview Church of God was before the Board at a previous 
meeting.  Mr. Hutchison stated that the Board instructed the applicant to forward the calculations 
and information developed by the applicant’s consulting engineer to the Township Engineer.  He 
stated that the Township Engineer reviewed the information and issued a letter indicating that the 
proposed stormwater solutions meet the Township’s ordinance requirements.  He stated that the 
only thing the applicant hasn’t done is gone through the formal process outlined in the ordinance 
but the applicant will be meeting the ordinance requirements and has agreed to pay the 
engineering invoice from the Township Engineer.   
 
Mr. Buckwalter asked about the appropriate way to phrase the motion if the intent is to waive the 
stormwater management ordinance process.  Mr. Hutchison stated that it would just waive the 
process that would have required the applicant to prepare a more formal plan, to provide 
calculations and to submit application fees.  Mr. Buckwalter asked if there are any consequences 
waving the process.  Mr. Hutchison stated that the Board isn’t waiving the requirements of the 
ordinance as far as managing stormwater. 
 
Mr. Demme stated that according to the minutes from the July 13, 2015 meeting the Board 
already approved the waiving of the process conditioned upon the review by the Township 
Engineer.  The Board discussed a motion to accept the engineer’s recommendation. 
 
Mr. Demme made a motion to accept the letter dated June 29, 2015 from the Township Engineer 
informing the Township that the intent of the applicant’s plan meets the Township’s Stormwater 



Management Ordinance in regards to volume, rate and quality control measures.  Mr. Buckwalter 
seconded the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice vote.  
 

f. Discussion re: Property Maintenance Code 
 
Chairman Blowers stated that in the fall of 2014 the Board considered adopting a property 
maintenance code for all properties in East Lampeter Township utilizing the International 
Property Maintenance Code (IPMC) as the standard.  He stated that the Board held three public 
meetings and a vote was taken and the ordinance was not adopted.  He stated that the Board then 
asked council to give additional options.  He stated that the Board is circulating a draft of a 
potential ordinance for an alternative option for a property maintenance code in the Township. 
 
Mr. Buckwalter asked for clarification on the draft ordinance that the only properties that would 
be exempt would be institutional (government buildings, fire companies, churches, hospitals, 
prisons etc.) properties and owner occupied properties. Mr. Blowers stated that is correct at this 
point.  Mr. Hutchison clarified that it would be owner occupied residential properties.  
Mr. Buckwalter stated that it would be helpful to know the number of complaints received by the 
Township to see how it applies to the ordinance.  Mr. Hutchison stated that he will provide that 
information to the Board.   
 
Mr. Blowers mentioned that if the Board gets to the point of considering the draft as legislation it 
will be advertised to the public. He asked that staff be available to provide information. 
 
New Business 
 

a. Stoltzfus Woodworking Land Development Plan #15-19: 324 Willow Road 
 

Chairman Blowers asked if anyone was present for this agenda item.  Mr. Michael Cowen was 
present. 
 
Mr. Cowen of Commonwealth Engineers is representing Stoltzfus Woodworking.  He stated that 
currently the applicant has submitted plans to the Township and Township Engineer and has 
received a review letter.  He stated that they are asking the Board to rule on the conditions in the 
letter.  He stated that the applicant does not have any problems meeting requirements of the 
review letter and is currently working with the Township Engineer on the stormwater portion.  
He stated that they are requesting 5 waivers but one waiver he feels is no longer required. 
 
Mr. Blowers stated that there were several review comments in particular in the stormwater 
management portion and asked Mr. Hutchison what staff is considering.  Mr. Hutchison stated 
that the stormwater comments the Township tends to leave up to the Engineers to figure out and 
work out the technical details to make sure the plan meets the requirements of the ordinance.  He 
stated that spending time reviewing them were probably not necessary. 
 
Mr. Blowers noted that there were three waivers and modifications and the Township received a 
letter concerning the waivers.  Mr. Cowen reviewed the waivers in regards to expanding Willow 
Road to a width of 18 feet, 36 feet parkway and for curbing of the frontage. He stated that they 
are asking for deferrals of those until the Township would require them to be improved.  
 



Mr. Blowers commented that the Township usually recommends that they are noted on the plans.  
Mr. Hutchison stated that they are noted on the plans and a deferral agreement is recorded with 
the property owner. Mr. Buckwalter asked about waiver number two in regards to stormwater.  
Mr. Cowen said that waiver request is being removed.  Mr. Blowers stated that the request is for 
the two additional waivers and #1 and #3 from the David Miller Associates letter. 
 
Mr. Buckwalter made a motion to approve the Land Development Plan #15-19 for Stoltzfus 
Woodworking at 324 Willow Road conditioned upon the letter from the Township Engineer 
dated June 15, 2015 granting the waiver of #1 related to preliminary plan to final, #3 related to 
rate of drainage and also the two requests related to the improvement of streets and curbing to be 
addressed through a deferral agreement and listed on the plan and all the other subdivision land 
development and stormwater issues will be resolved with the Township Engineer.  Mr. Demme 
seconded the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Other Business:  
 

a. Presentation re: Project to Assess Ag BMP’s and Township Modeling – Ms. Stephanie 
Smith, Lancaster Farmland Trust 

 
Chairman Blowers stated that this will be postponed till the end of the meeting due to the 
presenter not currently being present. 
 

b. Request to Use Township Roads – Bird In Hand Fire Company 
 
Chairman Blowers stated that the Township has received a request from the Hand In Hand Fire 
Company to hold a fund raising event using Township roads on Friday, September 11 and 
Saturday, September 12, 2015.   
 
Mr. Meyer made a motion to approve the request to use Township roads by the Hand In Hand 
Fire Company for the Run, Ride & Soar 5K event on September 11 and September 12, 2015.   
Mr. Buckwalter seconded the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Mr. Hoerner, Hand in Hand Fire Company, asked about scheduling the same weekend every year 
in the Township for this event. He is worried about the possibility of event being scheduled in 
the Township on the same weekend.  He stated that it is always the weekend following Labor 
Day.  Mr. Demme asked if we the Township could do a Resolution approving fundraisers by 
local fire companies first before others.  Mr. Hutchison stated it would be best in the form of an 
ordinance formalizing the process without having to go before the Board. He stated that the 
administrative staff could handle the scheduling.   Mr. Blowers asked Mr. Hutchison to work on 
developing an ordinance to formalize the process. 
 

c. Resolution Authorizing Agreement Execution re: Electronic Access to PADOT 
 
Mr. Hutchison explained that this item is being prompted by the Township's Bridgeport Ability 
Planning effort and that PennDOT has a new process where everyone has to be approved through 
their ECMS system which gives the Township electronic access to the PennDOT system.  He 
stated that this is a requirement in order to get the Bridgeport Study funding. 
 



Mr. Demme made a motion to adopt the resolution authorizing the Township Manager to sign 
the agreement regarding electronic access to PADOT.  Mr. Meyer seconded the motion and it 
was passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Resolution #2015-11 
 

d. Resolution re: Traffic Signal Maintenance – Rt. 896 and Rockvale Road 
 
Mr. Hutchison stated that one of PennDOT’s projects on the Transportation Improvement Plan is 
to improve Route 896 and as part of that project they are going to signalize the intersection of 
Route 896 and Rockvale Road.  He stated that in Pennsylvania traffic signals are owned, 
operated and maintained by the municipality in which they exist.  He stated that before 
PennDOT puts in a signal they require the municipality to agree to own, operate and maintain 
those signals.  He stated that PennDOT requires a resolution stating that the Township is willing 
to own, operate and maintain the signals. 
 
Mr. Meyer made a motion to adopt the Resolution #2015-12 for traffic signals at Route 896 and 
Rockvale Road.  Mr. Demme seconded the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Resolution #2015-12 
 

e. MS4 (Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System) Report 
 
Mr. Hutchison stated that the Township continues to work on the six minimum control measures 
that are part of the MS4 permit and Ms. Kalupson’s report shows the monthly activity related to 
the control measures.  He stated one of the biggest requirements is to prepare a Chesapeake Bay 
Pollution Reduction Plan and that the Township is working with West Lampeter Township and 
DEP to work out a method to have a joint plan which would benefit both Township’s and their 
waterways.  He stated another project is with the Farmland Trust who got funding to go visit all 
the farms in the Township to gather information on the best management practices in place and 
gather other information.  He stated that this information will be put into a software program to 
model the conditions in the Township and set a baseline model for conditions of the stormwater 
in the Township.   He stated the Township will be able to use the information for projects to see 
what benefits will come to the Township by doing those projects (cost benefit analysis).  He 
stated that the Township has posted the internship opportunity at Millersville University to come 
help the Township gather and catalog the information since 2003 throughout the Township in 
land development plans, subdivision plans, etc.  He stated the position is $10.00 hour plus 
educational credit and the Township would be supervising the intern.  He stated the Township 
has been getting issues/concerns from property owners related to stormwater that Ms. Kalupson 
goes out and offers assistance to help owners comply with ordinances.   
 
Mr. Blowers asked Mr. Hutchison about the Farmland Trust meeting.  Mr. Hutchison stated that 
the agricultural community is invited to a meeting with the Farmland Trust on Wednesday, 
August 5, 2015.  Mr. Blowers commented that the National Fish and Wildlife grant is 
approximately of $50,000 to the Farmland Trust and the Township is contributing $5,000 toward 
the outreach to the farming community to gather and share information on the stormwater. 
 

f. Tanger Time Extension Letter Acknowledged 
 
Chairman Blowers acknowledged that they received a letter from Caroline Hoffer who is 
representing Tanger Properties LLC.  He stated that the applicant has filed for a conditional use 



for the property at 311 S.K. Tanger Blvd.  He stated that the letter states they are working with 
the Township to schedule a hearing and they are waiving the 60 day time period and extend the 
time period until October 30, 2015. 
 
 
Public Comment: 
 
Mr. Buckwalter wanted to recognize his guests Ms. Marie Pierre, her husband Martin and her 
son John.  He explained that Ms. Pierre was an exchange student from France that his family 
hosted 25 years ago and that the family is visiting with them.   
 
Representative Keith Greiner questioned the best way to handle stormwater.  He knows it a big 
issue and he has spoken to the Agricultural Secretary about Lancaster County.  He asked if it 
should be looked at as a watershed prospective.  He understands it does present a challenge to the 
agricultural community.  Mr. Hutchison stated that all the stormwater management planning was 
done on a watershed basis and that was done on a County level because that is what the law says 
that the County is required to do those plans watershed by watershed.  He stated that the way the 
MS4 program has been approached has been to issue permits by municipalities and the regulators 
(DEP & EPA) look at each individual municipality to meet their own requirements. 
Mr. Hutchison stated that his concern is the permit constraint that states the plan needs to be in 
place by March 2016 and Millcreek, by their perspective, is part of the Conestoga Watershed.  
He feels a regional effort on a watershed basis makes sense but the regulations aren’t there. 
 
Mr. Blowers stated that the LIMC had a presentation regarding s software that would map and 
track everything related to watershed.   
 
Adjournment: 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Meyer and seconded by Mr. Demme to adjourn the meeting. The 
motion was passed by unanimous voice vote. The next regularly scheduled meeting is to be 
held on Monday, August 17, 2015 beginning at 7:30 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Ralph Hutchison 


















































